AMENDMENT 1 2 to the 3 **CODE OF BY-LAWS** for 4 5 WATERWOOD AT EAGLE CREEK HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC. 6 7 COMES NOW the Waterwood at Eagle Creek Homeowners Association, Inc., by its Board of 8 Directors, on this File day of November, 2006, and states as follows: 9 10 11 12 WITNESSETH THAT: 13 14 WHEREAS, the residential community in Indianapolis, Marion County, Indiana commonly known as Waterwood at Eagle Creek was established upon the recording of certain Plats with the 15 Office of the Recorder for Marion County, Indiana; and 16 17 WHEREAS, the Plat for Waterwood at Eagle Creek, Section 1, was filed with the Office of the 18 19 Marion County Recorder on July 2, 1986, as Instrument #86-58349; and 20 21 WHEREAS, the Plat for Waterwood at Eagle Creek, Section 2, was filed with the Office of the 22 Marion County Recorder on September 23, 1986, as Instrument #86-94582; and 23 WHEREAS, the Plat for Waterwood at Eagle Creek, Section 3, was filed with the Office of the 24 Marion County Recorder on May 8, 1987, as Instrument #87-51865; and 25 26 27 WHEREAS, the Plat for Waterwood at Eagle Creek, Section 4, was filed with the Office of the Marion County Recorder on May 8, 1987, as Instrument #87-51873; and 28 29 30 WHEREAS, the foregoing Plat contain Covenants which run with the land, namely the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (hereinafter "Declaration"), recorded in 31 32 the office of the Marion County Recorder on July 2, 1986, as Instrument #86-58348, which states that by taking a deed to any Lot as set forth on the above listed Plats for the Waterwood at 33 Eagle Creek development, each owner becomes a mandatory member of the Waterwood at Eagle 34 Creek Homeowners Association, Inc., an Indiana nonprofit corporation (hereinafter 35 "Association"); and 36 37 WHEREAS, the Association was incorporated pursuant to the above listed Declaration as a non-38 profit corporation pursuant to Articles of Incorporation filed with, and approved by, the Indiana 39 40 Secretary of State on April 10, 1989; and 41 WHEREAS, the Association's Initial Board of Director(s) adopted a Code of Bylaws 42 (hereinafter "Bylaws") for the Association and the homeowners within Waterwood at Eagle 43 Creek; and 44 45 WHEREAS, Article IX, Section 3, of the Articles of Incorporation, and Article VII, Section 1, of 46

the Bylaws states that the power to make, alter, amend or repeal the Code of Bylaws, without the consent of the Members, shall be vested in the Board of Directors of the Association and shall be

approved by a majority vote of the Directors present at any meeting of the Board; and

47

48

49 50 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted to the Board of Directors by Article IX, Section 3, of the Articles of Incorporation, and Article VII, Section 1, of the Bylaws, the Board of Directors desires to make amendments to the current Bylaws;

WHEREFORE, the following Amendments to the Bylaws are hereby approved and adopted by a majority vote of the Board of Directors of the Waterwood at Eagle Creek Homeowners Association, Inc. These amendments do not conflict in any manner with any provision contained in the Declaration, and it is the intention of the Association that all current Bylaw provisions not effected by these amendments are deemed and desired to remain in full force and effect.

Article I, Section 2, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE I

Section 2. Mailing Address, Principle Office & Resident Agent. The name and post office address of the registered office of the Corporation is: Waterwood at Eagle Creek Homeowners Association, Inc., P.O. Box 711, Fishers, IN 46038-0691 or as updated from time to time with the Indiana Secretary of State's Office. The current registered agent of the Corporation can be determined through the Indiana Secretary of State's office. Until the Board of Directors otherwise determines, the registered office of the Corporation shall be the registered place of business of the Corporation, but such registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors in the manner provided by law and need not be identical to the registered place of business of the Corporation.

Article III, Section 3, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE III

Section 3. Annual Meeting: The annual meeting of the Members shall be held in the month of November of each year, or in any other month as determined by the Board, so long as the annual meeting is held within 15 months of the previous annual meeting. The specific date, time and place of the annual meeting are to be determined by the Board of Directors. At each annual meeting, the Members shall elect the Board of Directors of the Association in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws and transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

Article III, Section 4, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE III

Section 4. Special Meetings: A Special Meeting of the Lot Owners may be called by the President, by request of two (2) Directors, or upon written request of not less than ten percent (10%) of the Lot Owners. The request shall be presented to the President or Secretary of the Association and shall state the purposes for which the meeting is to be called. Such purposes,

along with the date, time and location of the special meeting shall be stated in the notice of the meeting which is sent to the Lot Owners. No business shall be transacted at a Special Meeting except as stated in the notice of the meeting, unless all the Lot Owners are present.

ARTICLE III

Article III, Section 6(b), is hereby amended to read as follows:

Section 6.

b. <u>Proxies</u>: A Member may vote either in person or by his duly authorized and designated proxy. Where a Member's vote is by proxy, the Member shall duly designate his proxy in writing and deliver it to the Secretary of the Corporation or any other officer or agent of the Association authorized to tabulate votes. The proxy is effective once it is received by the Association, but a proxy may be revoked in writing by the Member prior to being cast or by the Member in person at the meeting where the vote is to be taken. A proxy may be submitted along with a Ballot form via the U.S. Mail to the Association, so long as it contains the Members printed name, address or Lot number, and the Member's signature. A proxy is only valid for eleven (11) months from the date of its execution unless otherwise expressly set forth in the proxy.

Article III, Section 6(c), is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE III

Section 6.

c. Quorum and Adjournments: At any meeting of the membership, unless otherwise set forth in the Declaration, the presence of Members, in person or by proxy, entitled to cast ten percent (10%) of the total number of valid and eligible Owner votes shall constitute a quorum. For purposes of this section, the term "eligible" means any Owner whose privileges are not suspended for any reason as set forth in Article III, Section 9, of these Bylaws. If a Member has had his voting rights suspended pursuant to these By-Laws, that vote is not considered a valid or eligible vote toward calculating quorum requirements (for example, if there are 212 total Owners in the subdivision, but 29 have suspended voting privileges, then the 10% quorum requirement is based upon 183 Owners for a quorum of 19, not 212 and a quorum of 22). After a Member's vote is represented, either in person or by proxy, for any purpose at a meeting, the vote will be considered present for quorum purposes for the remainder of the meeting and for any adjournment of that meeting. Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration, Articles or these Bylaws, each question or action shall be deemed passed if approved by a simple majority of the eligible votes cast by the Members present, in person or by proxy, at a meeting at which a quorum is present.

Any meeting of Members, including both annual and special meetings and any adjournments thereof, may be adjourned to a later date without notice other than announcement at the meeting even though less than a quorum is present. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, in person or by proxy, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified or called.

 Article III, Section 8, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE III

Section 8. Action by Written Ballot. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Members may be taken without a meeting if the Association delivers a written ballot to every Member entitled to vote on the matter. The written ballot must set forth each proposed action and provide an opportunity for the Member to vote for or against each proposed action. Approval by written ballot is only valid if the number of votes cast by ballot equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing such action, and the number of approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes required to approve the matter at a meeting. A solicitation, or request, for votes by written ballot must indicate the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirements, state the percentage of approvals necessary to approve each matter, other than the election of directors, and specify the time by which a ballot must be received by the Association to be counted.

Article III, Section 9, is hereby added to these Bylaws and reads as follows:

ARTICLE III

Section 9. Suspension of Voting Rights: No Member shown on the books or management accounts of the Association to be more than thirty (30) days delinquent in any payment due to the Association shall be eligible to vote, either in person or by proxy, or to be elected to the Board of Directors. For purposes of this provision, the thirty (30) days period begins on the first day of the fiscal year or the due date as set by the Board of Directors pursuant to Article V, Section 5.7, of the Declaration, and "payment" shall mean payment of the full assessment amount due. Hence, if any Owner arranges payment of an assessment through a payment option offered by the Association, and that payment arrangement does not pay the entire assessment amount within thirty (30) days of the assessment becoming due, then that Owner's Voting Rights shall be compromised as set forth under this provision until the entire assessment is paid in full. In addition, payment of delinquent accounts by any method other than cash at a meeting where a vote will be held does not cease any suspension under this provision until the funds from the payment are actually received by the Association.

Article IV, Section 1, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE IV

Section 1. Number, Term of Office, Qualifications & Election:

a. The affairs of the Association shall be governed and managed by the Board of Directors (herein collectively called the "Board" or "Directors" and individually called "Director"). The Board of Directors shall be composed of three (3) persons, with the minimum number of Directors being three (3) and the maximum number of Directors being nine (9). The exact number of Directors may be increased or decreased by resolution of the Board of Directors.

b. No person shall be eligible to serve as a Director unless he or she is an Owner of a Lot in Waterwood at Eagle Creek. Any Lot Owner who is thirty (30) days or more in arrears in paying his annual or special assessments is not eligible to serve or continue to serve as a Director. Any Director who becomes delinquent on any annual or special assessment during a term of office shall automatically be disqualified from the Board and the vacancy shall be filled by the remaining Directors.

- c. The Board of Directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of the Association. At each annual meeting, Each Director shall be elected to a term of one (1) year or until his successor shall have been duly elected and qualified. There is no limit on the number of terms a Director may serve.
- d. Nominations for the Board of Directors may be made by any Owner from those persons eligible to serve. Such nominations may be made in writing and presented to the Secretary of the Association prior to the date of the Annual Meeting; or, if an insufficient number of written nominations are received prior to the annual meeting to fill all Board positions open for election at the annual meeting, then the presiding officer at the Annual Meeting may accept oral nominations from the floor prior to voting on any open Directorship position.
- e. Voting on each position for the Board of Directors shall be by paper ballot containing the signature, printed name and address of the Owner casting said ballot, unless written balloting is waived by proper motion and a majority approval of those Owners in attendance at the Annual Meeting and only in circumstances where the number of nominees do not exceed the number of open Board positions. Each Owner, or their proxy, may cast the total number of votes to which he is entitled to cast for as many nominees as are to be elected; however, under no circumstances shall cumulative voting be allowed. Those persons receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected. At any director election where the terms of those directors being elected are to be staggered, the highest vote recipient shall be elected to the longest term, the second highest vote recipient shall be elected to the second longest term, and so on until all director positions being elected are filled. If no quorum is present at the Annual Meeting, or if a sufficient number of Directors cannot be found to fill open Board of Director vacancies at the Annual Meeting, whether by slating, written petition or oral nomination, the Board of Directors has the authority to fill the vacancy/vacancies by appointment as set forth in Article IV, Section 2, of these Bylaws.

Article IV, Section 2, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE IV

Section 2. Vacancies and Removal:

Vacancies. Any vacancy that shall occur in the Board of Directors due to the death, resignation, removal or otherwise shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Directors, unless that vacancy is caused by a Director being removed from the Board by a vote of the Membership, in which case a majority of the Members in attendance shall select at the same meeting a replacement to fill the remaining term of the removed Director. Any Director appointed to fill a vacancy on the Board shall serve the unexpired portion of the Board term of the Director whom the appointee is replacing.

Removal. Any Director may be removed from the Board of Directors with or without cause, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Members of the Corporation. A Director may also be removed with cause by a majority vote of the remaining Directors. For purposes of this provision, "with cause" includes, but is not limited to, acts of fraud, theft, deception, criminal behavior, breach or disclosure of confidential Board information or discussions to person(s) not on the Board, or other unauthorized acts which hinder, bypass or compromise the authority of the Board to act as a whole. A Director may also be removed by a majority vote of the remaining Directors if he or she fails to attend three (3) or more consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors, or becomes ineligible to serve on the Board pursuant to the qualifications set forth in Article IV, Section 1, of these Bylaws. The vacancy of a Director removed by the Members at a special meeting or a vacancy of a directorship due to a Director being removed by a vote of the Board shall be filled pursuant to sub section a.) of this provision.

b.

Article IV, Section 3, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE IV

<u>Section 3.</u> <u>Annual Meeting of Directors</u>: The Board of Directors shall meet annually, without notice, immediately following, and at the same place as, the annual meeting of the Members; or at the option of the Directors, the Board may conduct their annual meeting at the first meeting of the Board of Directors held following the annual meeting. The Board shall elect the officers of the Board at this annual meeting.

Article IV, Section 8, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE IV

Section 8. Action Taken Without a Meeting: Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee may be taken without a meeting if the action is approved by a majority of the entire Board in writing or via email, and so long as evidence of the written or email approval is made a part of the corporate Board minutes or records.

Article V, Section 1, is hereby added to these Bylaws and reads as follows:

ARTICLE V

Section 1. Number of Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the Board of Directors and shall consist of a President, a Treasurer and a Secretary. There may also be one or more Vice Presidents and such other officers or assistant officers as the Board shall from time to time create and so elect. The President shall be chosen from among the Directors,

and the offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. However, under no circumstance shall the offices of President and Secretary be held by the same person.

Article V, Section 2, is hereby added to these Bylaws and reads as follows:

ARTICLE V

<u>Section 2.</u> <u>Election and Terms.</u> Each officer shall be elected by the Board of Directors at the annual meeting thereof and shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the Board or until his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified or until his or her death, resignation or removal.

Article V, Section 3, is hereby added to these Bylaws and reads as follows:

ARTICLE V

<u>Section 3.</u> <u>Vacancies, Resignation and Removal.</u> Whenever any vacancy shall occur in any office by death, resignation, removal, increase in the number of officers of the Corporation, or otherwise, the same shall be filled by the Board of Directors, and the officer so elected shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the Board or until his or her successor is duly elected or appointed.

Any officer may be removed from office, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. Any officer may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Board, the President or Secretary of the Corporation. A resignation is effective upon receipt, unless it is made effective upon a later date and the Corporation accepts that later effective date.

Article VI, Section 1, is hereby amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE VI

Section 1. Books and Records: The Association shall keep detailed books of account showing all expenditures and receipt of administration which shall specify the maintenance and repair expenses of the Common Areas, all easements, and any other expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Association and the members. A general accounting of the corporation's income and expenses shall be prepared annually by an independent third party. The books and records of the Association, including current copies of the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations adopted by the Association, financial documents and other corporate documents concerning the Association or its operation required to be kept and made available for inspection shall be available for inspection by any member or other properly designated party at the principal office of the Association during reasonable business hours or under other reasonable circumstances, where copies of the same may be purchased at reasonable cost. The Association reserves the right to require any member to request inspection of the accounts, books, records, financial statements, and other papers of the Association according to the requirements set forth under the Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1991, specifically Indiana Code 23-17-27 et seq., and any amendments or modification subsequently adopted thereto.

Association, Inc.	
WATERWOOD AT EAGLE CREEK HOMEO	OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
Charlette Control	11-29-06
moura asmunal	
President	Date
CHARLOWE CARINICHARA	
Times raine of Britain	
ATTEST:	
Karen (X/41cm)	11-29-06
Secretary	Date
	~ ~~
LAREN ATKLEON	
Printed Name of Director	
	WATERWOOD AT EAGLE CREEK HOMEO Malatte Carmidae President CHARLOTTE CARINICHALL Printed Name of Director ATTEST: Haw Haw Secretary ATKLEON ATKLEON

The undersigned hereby certifies that this Amendment to the Bylaws of the Waterwood at Eagle Creek Homeowners Association, Inc. was duly moved and passed by a majority vote of the Board

of Directors of said Association pursuant to Article IX, Section 3, of the Articles of Incorporation,

and Article VII, Section 1, of the Bylaws for Waterwood at Eagle Creek Homeowners